
 

 

SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 7 MAY 2024 AT 3.00 PM 
CIVIC CENTRE, RIDLEY STREET, REDCAR, YORKSHIRE, TS10 1TD 
 

CONTACT 
Ms Sarah Connolly 

01642 444414 
Friday, 26 April 2024 

 
CIRCULATION 
Councillors C Massey (Chair), G Nightingale and J Symon 
All Members of the Council (for information) 
Managing Director (Head of Paid Service) 
The Press [except for Confidential item(s)] 
 

A G E N D A 
 
  Pages  
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

 
2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 
3.   Veritau Tees Valley Limited - Finance and Performance Update 

 
Please note that appendices to this report are not public documents as they 
contain exempt information.  Before any discussion on the detail of the 
appendices, the press and public will be excluded from the meeting. 
 

2 - 51 

 
4.   Proposed Changes to Veritau Structure 

 
Please note that appendix to this report is not a public document as it contains 
exempt information.  Before any discussion on the detail of the appendix, the 
press and public will be excluded from the meeting. 
 

52 - 72 

 
5.   Exclusion of the Press and Public. 

 
To consider passing a resolution excluding the press and public from the 
meeting on the grounds that the following items contains exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended). 
 

 

 
6.   Cygnet Family Law 

 
73 - 80 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



REDCAR AND CLEVELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE 

 
7 May 2024 

 
Veritau Tees Valley Limited - Finance and Performance 

Update 
 

Introduction 
 
1 Veritau Tees Valley Limited (VTV) is a shared service company 

which was established in December 2019. The company is jointly 
owned by Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council, Middlesbrough 
Council and Veritau Limited. Veritau Limited is jointly owned by City 
of York Council and North Yorkshire Council, and the company was 
established in 2009. Together the companies form the Veritau 
Group. 

 
2 In addition to the 4 member councils, the Veritau Group also 

provides services to a large number of multi-academy trusts and 
schools, housing associations and other public sector organisations.  
VTV employs 4 members of staff but the wider group has over 90 
professional staff and offers a range of assurance services, including 
internal audit, counter fraud, risk management, and information 
governance. The majority of these services are provided to 
organisations in the Yorkshire and Teesside regions although the 
group has clients across the United Kingdom. 
 

3 Veritau delivers shareholder value to its member councils through: 
 

• economies of scale resulting in lower unit costs – the costs to 
each member council would be much higher for an equivalent 
quality of service if delivered in-house or if the service was fully 
outsourced 

• increased efficiencies and flexibility – standard working 
practices ensure there is less duplication of effort and best 
practice is more easily shared  

• improved access to specialist resources (for example data 
analytics, risk management and counter fraud specialists) 
which would not otherwise be available to a small in-house 
team 

• increased resilience and the ability to accommodate changes in 
workload because of the larger pool of staff available 

• improved service continuity and less reliance on key members 
of staff for service delivery. The opportunities offered for career 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



progression and development also make it easier to recruit and 
retain staff compared to smaller in-house teams 

• the ability to invest in new technologies and working practices 

• greater depth of knowledge and expertise – staff have more 
insight due to the experience gained through working for 
multiple clients. This improves the quality of the services being 
provided.    

 
2022/23 Financial Statements 
 

4 The operating results for the Group (excluding accounting and 
pension adjustments and before tax) were: 
 
 2022/23 

 
 2021/22 

Group Company Turnover  
(£k) 

 

 Operating 
Profit (£k) 

 Operating 
Profit (£k) 

 
Veritau Limited 
 

2,098  24.5  117.5 

Veritau North 
Yorkshire Limited 
 

669  1.4  57.3 

Veritau Tees Valley 
Limited 
 

431  3.2  31.8 

Total 3,198  29.1  206.6 
 
A copy of the 2023/24 audited financial statements for VTV are 
attached as confidential appendix 1 for information.  
 

5 Fee income increased by 11.2% (2022 - 8.8%) with the areas of 
strongest growth being internal audit and information governance. 
The group operating profit was £29.1k compared to the target of 
£45.2k.  This reflected the higher than expected national pay award 
for local government which resulted in reduced margins.     

 
Finance and Performance Update (2023/24) 
 

6 During the year, the Group continued to promote its internal audit 
and data protection services to schools and other public sector 
organisations. New clients gained during the year included: 
 
Eden Learning Trust (8 schools in Durham) 
North East Learning Trust (11 schools across the North East) 
Galileo Trust (10 schools in Redcar) 

Page 3



Prince Regent Street Trust (4 schools in Stockton) 
Ironstone Academy Trust (6 schools in Middlesbrough / Redcar) 
Horizons Specialist Academy Trust (7 schools in Stockton) 
Melrose Learning Trust (7 schools in Teesside) 
 

7 Services were also provided to a number of local authorities and 
council owned organisations including Sunderland City Council, the 
London Borough of Newham, Mid Kent Audit Partnership, 
Hertfordshire County Council and Birmingham Children’s Trust. In 
addition, ad-hoc data protection consultancy services were provided 
to Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (in North Wales) and 
Basketball England.  
 

8 During the year, 4 trainees completed their professional 
qualifications and progressed to be officers. In addition, we 
recruited a further 5 trainees.   
 

9 Our internal audit practices were subject to an external quality 
assessment (EQA) by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. 
The results of the review were reported in September 2023. The 
outcome of the review was very positive, and the overall opinion 
was that our internal audit function ‘generally conforms’ to the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and IIA standards. A 
copy of the report was shared with all our member councils. 
 

10 We completed the implementation of our new audit management 
system, K10 Vision. This was a significant project which involved a 
number of changes to working practices. We also launched a new 
eLearning platform for school clients called Veritau Learn. 

 
11 We are now a living wage accredited employer, and our Good 

Business Charter accreditation was renewed for a further year. 
During the year we also gained Cyber Essentials accreditation, 
confirmed our commitment to be a Disability Confident employer 
and signed up to the Prompt Payment Code (PPC). The Code is 
administered by the Office of the Small Business Commissioner and 
signatories commit to paying their suppliers in time. We also 
reviewed and updated our Corporate Social Responsibility 
statement. 
 

12 The results of the annual staff and client satisfaction surveys show 
that overall satisfaction levels remained high, as follows: 
 
 2024 2023 
Staff satisfaction (very satisfied/satisfied) 84.6% 80.4% 
Client satisfaction (excellent/good) 96.7% 95.1% 
Client satisfaction – school DPO service 96.0% 94.1% 

Page 4



 
2023/24 Management Accounts 

 
13 The management accounts for the year show that VTV and the 

Group are both on target to achieve their budgeted profits. The 
external auditors, BHP are due to start their audit fieldwork on 22 
May 2024. Preparations for the audit are underway and copies of 
the draft accounts will be shared with each member council once 
these are ready.  

 
2024/25 Business Plan (Group) 
 

14 The business plan sets out the strategic aims of the Veritau group 
for the next three years to 2027, and the service priorities for 
2024/25.  The business plan also includes details of the Group 
budget for 2024/25, as follows: 

 
 2024/25  2023/24 

 £ (k)  £ (k) 

Turnover 3,813  3,724 

Cost of sales (3,462)  (3,410) 

Gross profit 351  314 

Other income 24  11 

Overheads (338)  (293) 

Net profit before tax 37  32 
 
15 Capital expenditure of £42k is planned in 2024/25 (2023/24 - 

£38k). This includes further upgrades to the website client portal 
and investment in a helpdesk management system and new 
redaction software. There will also be continuing investment in data 
analytics and IT hardware.   
 

16 The key business priorities for 2024/25 include the continued 
expansion of the customer base and a focus on developing the 
quality and scope of the service offering. Expanding the customer 
base includes the expected admission of new member councils and 
the provision of services across a wider geographical area. Using 
technology to support more effective and agile working will also 
remain a priority. 
 

17 In addition, the following service priorities have been identified for 
2024/25: 

Page 5



• internal audit – to use the new K10 Vision audit management 
system to improve efficiency and client communications, 
further develop the use of agile auditing techniques, increase 
data analytics / IT audit capacity and promote our services to 
academy schools. We will also look to develop the use of AI to 
support service delivery. 

• information governance – to continue to promote data 
protection and information access services to schools and other 
clients, and to implement new redaction software and a 
helpdesk management system 

• counter fraud – to promote counter fraud services to councils, 
housing associations and schools, to increase the use of data 
analytics, and to develop a range of eLearning courses 

• risk management – to be seen as the provider of first choice for 
member councils and other clients, and to promote risk 
management products and services for academy schools       

18 Other specific service development / improvement priorities for 
2024/25 are set out in the Business Plan. 
 

19 A copy of the 2024/25 business plan is attached as appendix 2.  
The VTV budget for 2024/25 is also attached as appendix 3 for 
information.  The business plan and budget are confidential because 
they contain commercially sensitive information. 

 
Recommendations 
 

20 That the shareholder committee notes the: 
 
a) 2022/23 financial statements for VTV 
b) Group’s performance in 2023/24 
c) 2024/25 Group business plan and VTV budget 

 
Appendices (Confidential) 

 
Note: Whilst this is a public report, the information contained within 
Appendix 1, 2 and 3 is considered to be exempt from disclosure under 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A, Local Government Act 1972 
(Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)) 

 
Appendix 1 – 2022/23 financial statements for VTV 
Appendix 2 – 2024/25 Veritau Group business plan 
Appendix 3 – 2024/25 VTV budget 

 
Further Information 
Contact: Max Thomas – Chief Executive max.thomas@veritau.co.uk 

Page 6

mailto:max.thomas@veritau.co.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 50

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Member Report 
Proposed changes to Veritau Structure 
 
Report to:  Shareholder Committee  
Report from:  Finance Director and s151 Officer 
Portfolio:  Resources 
Report Date: 7 May 2024 
Decision Type:   Committee  
Council Priority: All 

  
 

HEADLINE POSITION  
 
1.0  Summary of report 
 
1.1 This report seeks the committee’s approval for the establishment of a new 

company limited by guarantee for the provision of internal audit and counter 
fraud services as set out in the attached business case. The committee is also 
asked to approve the payment of a dividend by Veritau Tees Valley Limited and 
for Veritau Tees Valley Limited to be wound up once the new company is 
established. 

 
2.0  Recommendations  
 

It is recommended that Shareholder Committee: 
 
- approves the business case 
- approves the council’s membership of the new company limited by guarantee 

(to be called Veritau Public Sector Limited) 
- approves the payment of a dividend from Veritau Tees Valley Limited 

sufficient to fund the Council’s subscription to the new company 
- approves a special resolution to wind up Veritau Tees Valley Limited once the 

new company is established 
- delegates the approval of the articles, the company name, the members 

agreement and any other governance documents associated with the new 
company to the Managing Director (Head of Paid Services) 

- delegates the approval for the Council to enter into all other related 
agreements necessary for the establishment and operation of the new 
company to the Managing Director (Head of Paid Services) 

- approves the appointment of a director to the board of the new company once 
it is established 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 4



DETAILED PROPOSALS 
 

3.0  What are the objectives of the report and how do they link to the Council’s 
priorities 

 
 Background 
 
3.1 Veritau Tees Valley Limited currently operates as a Teckal company (in 

accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015) and is owned by the 
Council, Middlesbrough Council (MC) and Veritau Limited. Veritau Limited is also 
a Teckal company and is jointly owned by North Yorkshire Council (NYC) and 
the City of York Council (CYC). Collectively these companies are known as the 
‘Veritau Group’.  

 
3.2 Veritau Tees Valley provides internal audit and counter fraud services to the 

Council, reporting the outcomes of work to the Governance Committee. The 
work of Veritau therefore forms a key part of the Council’s overall framework of 
governance, control, and risk management. 

 
3.3 Veritau Limited (VL) has provided a business case for a proposed restructure of 

the Veritau Group. The business case as attached as confidential appendix 1.   
 
3.4 The proposal is to create a new Teckal compliant company, limited by guarantee 

which will be jointly owned by NYC, CYC, MC and the Council. The formation of 
the new company will provide a sustainable business model, enabling Veritau to 
continue growing and allowing further member authorities to be admitted over 
time.   

 
Current Group Structure and Proposal for Restructure 

 
3.5 Following the establishment of VL in 2009, the shared service model proved to 

be successful, resulting in several other local authorities expressing an interest in 
joining. A further joint venture company called Veritau North Yorkshire Limited 
(VNY) was established in February 2012, which was co-owned by VL and five of 
the North Yorkshire district / borough Councils. Following local government 
reorganisation in North Yorkshire, VL purchased the shares in VNY previously 
held by the North Yorkshire district / borough Councils. VNY is therefore now a 
wholly owned subsidiary of VL, and the company is currently dormant.  

 
3.6 Veritau Tees Valley Limited (VTV) was formed as a second joint venture 

company in December 2019. The staff who were previously employed by the 
Council (in a shared service with Middlesbrough Council) were transferred to the 
company and it started trading on 1 January 2020.  

 
3.7 Both VL and VTV were established as Teckal compliant companies. This 

enabled the local authority members of both companies to take advantage of the 
exemption contained in Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, 
to award contracts to the companies for the supply of services without the 
requirement to undertake a public procurement exercise, providing certain 
conditions were satisfied throughout the life of any long-term contracts they have 
with the local authority members. 

Page 53



 
3.8 The current group structure is therefore: 
 

 
  
3.9 In addition to providing services to its four local authority members, the Veritau 

Group now provides assurance services to over 700 other clients. To comply 
with the Teckal exemption, this commercial activity must account for less than 
20% of the overall value of the services provided. This limit therefore restricts the 
growth opportunities for the Veritau Group.  

 
3.10 The shared service model also continues to attract interest from other councils. 

However, the existing corporate structure for both VL and VTV does not allow 
new local authority members to be easily admitted due to the need to issue 
additional shares, and the impact this has on existing shareholdings. Existing 
member councils also cannot easily leave.  

 
3.11 The key drivers for a change to the Veritau Group’s current business model and 

corporate structure are therefore: 
 

• to ensure Veritau can maintain its Teckal status, allowing it to continue 
delivering audit and assurance services to its current member councils; 

• to ensure Veritau can continue to grow through the admission of new 
member councils and that the business remains competitive. 

Proposal – creation of Veritau Public Sector Limited 
 
3.12 The proposal is to create a new Teckal compliant company, limited by 

guarantee. The new company would be called Veritau Public Sector Limited 
(VPS). 

 
3.13 The four existing Veritau member authorities (CYC, NYC, MC and RCBC) would 

all become the initial members in the new company. Further member councils 
would be admitted after the formation of the company. 

 

Veritau Limited
(shareholders - NYC 50% / 

CYC 50%)

Veritau Tees Valley 
Limited

(shareholders - Veritau 
Limited 50% / MBC 25% / 

RCBC 25%)

Veritau North Yorkshire 
Limited

(shareholder - Veritau 
Limited 100%) (dormant)

Page 54



3.14 Each member authority of VPS would be required to pay a one-off subscription 
fee of £20k to join the new company to cover set-up costs, working capital and 
contingencies. VTV would pay a dividend to MC and RCBC to fund each 
council’s subscription. 

 
3.15 The future liability of the Council and the other member authorities, otherwise 

known as the guarantee, would be capped at an agreed value of no more than 
£10. The guarantee is the maximum sum which would need to be paid by the 
member council to the company in the event of the company being wound up. If 
the Council or one of the other local authorities ceased to be a member of VPS, 
the guarantee would continue to apply for one year after the date of exit. 

 
3.16 VL would become a non-Teckal company limited by shares providing services to 

external clients. All the existing commercial contracts would therefore remain 
with VL The company would also continue to be co-owned by CYC and NYC. 
The existing staff and assets of both VL and VTV would transfer to VPS once the 
company was created.  

 
3.17 VPS would recharge any payroll and overhead costs to VL at a market rate and 

would also charge VL a management fee for strategic leadership services.  
 
3.18 To the extent that VPS makes a surplus in respect of any services it provides 

(whether to VL or to its member councils), this would either be reinvested in its 
business operations or returned to the member councils in the form of a rebate. 

 
3.19 Both VNY and VTV would eventually be wound up. 
 
3.20 Subject to approval from all the existing member council, the Veritau Group 

structure would then be as follows: 

 
 
3.21 This corporate structure would satisfy the Teckal exemption within the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2015. A company limited by guarantee would also 
facilitate the admission and exit of member authorities which permits the future 
growth of the company. 

 
4.0  What options have been considered  
 

Veritau Limited 
(Commercial)

(shareholders - NYC  / 
CYC)

Veritau Tees Valley 
Limited

(dormant)

Veritau North Yorkshire 
Limited

(dormant)

Veritau Public Sector 
(Teckal)

(company limited by 
guarantee)

Page 55



4.1 A number of options have been considered and external legal advice has been 
obtained in respect of Teckal compliance. The alternative options were: 

 
Option 1 - Do Nothing  

 
This option is not considered to be viable because it does not allow the Veritau 
Group to grow and remain Teckal compliant.   

 
Option 2 - Keep the existing business structure but take steps to ensure 
continued Teckal compliance 

 
This would require careful monitoring of the external fee work undertaken by 
Veritau. Any reduction in the value of this work could have a negative impact on 
Veritau’s financial viability. In addition, the corporate structure would still not 
allow for the easy admission of new member authorities.  

 
 Option 3 - Re-purpose VNY and novate all external commercial work to VNY 
 

This option would involve converting the existing dormant company into a 
standalone commercial business. The existing commercial contracts held by 
Veritau Limited would then be novated to VNY. This would partially address any 
longer-term concerns about potential Teckal compliance but would still not allow 
for the easy admission of new authorities. 

 
4.2 As such, these alternative options are not considered to be viable, and the 

proposed creation of the new company limited by guarantee remains the most 
appropriate solution to ensure continued Teckal compliance and growth. 

 
5.0 Impact Assessment 
 
5.1  Climate Emergency – there are no direct implications from this report. 
 
5.2 Health and Safety – there are no direct implications from this report. 
 
5.3 Social Value – the work of Veritau supports overall aims and priorities by 

promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping to make the Council a 
more effective organisation. 

 
5.4 Legal - the Council will rely on the general trading powers in conjunction with its 

powers to carry out the activity in question. Both general trading powers require 
the authority to trade through a company. Section 95 of the Local Government 
Act 2003 enables relevant authorities ‘to do for a commercial purpose anything 
which they are authorised to do for the purpose of carrying on any of their 
ordinary functions’ (anything they are empowered to do in legislation). The 
section 95 power can be limited by order and authorities exercising it must have 
regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State. Section 4 of the Localism 
Act 2011 enables the local authority to do for a commercial purpose anything 
that it is empowered to do under section 1 (the general power of competence). 
The section 4 power is therefore wider than the section 95 power.  

 
The section 95 and section 4 trading powers prescribe which company structures 
may be used, one of which is a company limited by guarantee.  

Page 56



 
The local authority must prepare a business case supporting the exercise of the 
section 95 power, which the authority must approve (Local Government (Best 
Value Authorities) (Power to Trade) (England) Order 2009). The business case 
attached at appendix 1 fulfils this purpose. 
 
It is proposed that the new company will comply with the Teckal exemption as 
incorporated into the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Regulation 12(1) 
enables a contracting authority to directly award contracts to a company it owns 
without undertaking a procurement exercise where the following criteria are 
satisfied:  
 
• the contracting authority exercises the same amount of control over the 

company as it does over any of its internal departments. This will be 
governed through reserved matters in the company’s Articles of Association, 
Members Agreement and corresponding Scheme of Delegation and the 
composition of the Board of Directors of the company which will contain a 
majority of member authority directors; and  

• more than 80% of the company’s turnover is derived through activities 
performed for the contracting authority; and  

• there is no direct private capital participation in the company.  

It is proposed that the new company will be set up and operated in a way which 
will fulfil all three criteria.  

 
It will be possible for the new company to admit new members provided that it 
continues to satisfy the control and activities tests under Teckal. This is possible 
due to the company being limited by guarantee.  

 
The Procurement Act 2023 introduces slightly different tests for Teckal (under 
the Act referred to as ‘vertical arrangements) but in practice the control test 
contained in Schedule 2 of the Act is not fundamentally different from that 
currently contained under Reg 12(1) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
There is a new component of the test under the Procurement Act 2023, requiring 
that any controlling or member entity fulfils the requirement of ‘parent 
undertaking’ as defined under section 1162, Companies Act 2006.  

 
The new company’s activities will be bound by the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015. The company will therefore need its own Procurement and Contract 
Procedure Rules. It is proposed that where the company requires the use of 
office accommodation it will enter into appropriate commercial leasing or 
licencing agreements. 

 
The new company will also provide staff resources and strategic leadership 
services to Veritau Limited on an ongoing basis. Any services provided by the 
new company to Veritau Limited would be charged at market rates and would 
count towards the 20% Teckal limit.  

 
The proposal for Veritau Tees Valley Limited to declare a dividend to its 
shareholders is subject to shareholder’s consent. Approval of the dividend by the 
Council is therefore required. 

Page 57



 
The staff within Veritau Tees Valley Limited will transfer to the new company 
under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 
2006 (TUPE).  

 
5.5 Financial – the work of Veritau contributes to the effective management of the 

Council’s financial risks. The payment of a divided by Veritau Tees Valley 
Limited will provide the funding to enable the Council to pay the one-time 
subscription fee for admission to the new company.  
 
The recommendations contained in this report will ensure the Council is able to 
retain a cost-effective internal audit assurance service. 

 
5.6 Human Resources – the work of Veritau contributes to the effective 

management of the Council’s employment related risks. 
 
5.7 Equality and Diversity – the work of Veritau contributes to the effective 

management of risks associated with equalities and diversity. 
 
6.0  Consultation and Engagement  
 
6.1 Senior officers have been consulted on the business case attached as appendix 

1 to this report. 
 
7.0  Appendices and Background Papers  
 

Appendix 1 – business case for the creation of a new Teckal company limited by 
guarantee (confidential). 

 
8.0 Contact Officer  
 

Name:   Max Thomas  
Position:   Chief Executive (Veritau) 
Email address:  max.thomas@veritau.co.uk 
Telephone Number: 01904 552940 

 
 

Page 58

mailto:max.thomas@veritau.co.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Veritau Tees Valley Limited - Finance and Performance Update
	Appendix 1 - Veritau Tees Valley 2023 accounts (confidential)
	Appendix 2 - Veritau Business Plan 2024-25 (confidential)
	Appendix 3 - Veritau Tees Valley budget 2024-25 (confidential)

	4 Proposed Changes to Veritau Structure
	CONFIDENTIAL Veritau - business case (final) summary

	6 Cygnet Family Law

